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MD of Willow Creek

The Municipal District (MD) of Willow Creek No. 26 is a rural municipality within Southern
Alberta with a population of approximately 6,180 and is conveniently located between
the City of Calgary and the City of Lethbridge. The district covers an area of 4,485 square
kilometeres (1,759.91 square miles) and encompasses the following:

The Towns of Nanton, Stavely, Claresholm
and Fort Macleod

The Hamlets of Parkland, Granum, Orton,
Woodhouse and Moon River Estates

Geographical Information

Location:
Southern Alberta

Major Highways:
Highways 2 and 3

Secondary Highways:
Highways 520, 529, 527, 533, 519, 511,
810, 507, 785 and 811

Distance from MD office to Major Areas:
e 139 km (86 miles) to Calgary
o 87 km (54 miles) to Lethbridge
¢ 201 km (125 miles) to Coutts/Sweetgrass
border crossing

PREPARED BY, MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF
WILLOW CREEK NO, 26

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

JULY 2024
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MD PROFILE

MD SERVICES:

The MD provides a number of services for its residents, either directly or jointly with other
municipalities. These services include the following:

o General Government - includes all Council governance, administration and
taxation functional activities;

Protective and Bylaw Services - provides policing and municipal bylaw services;

Disaster Services- includes municipal emergency planning, disaster response
and emergency services dispatching;

Fire and Emergency Services - provides for the rescue and protection of people
and property within the Municipality through effective and efficient manage-
ment and coordination of emergency services systems and resources;

Transportation Services - responsibility for the delivery of municipal public
works services related to the planning, development and maintenance of road-
way systems, streets, walks, and lighting, asset management and infrastructure
design and construction;

Planning and Development Services - responsible for the administration of mu-
nicipal planning documents pertaining to residential, commercial, industrial and
agricultural development services within the municipality;

Recreation and Culture - Provides regional recreation, summer games and com-
munity event funding;

Agricultural Services - undertakes the requirements of the Agricultural Service
Board Act, Weed Control Act, Soil Conservation Act and provides guidance on
agricultural matters to the municipal council and agricultural related services to
the public.

RECREATION AND ATTRACTIONS:

Library:
Claresholm, Fort Macleod, Granum, Nanton and Stavely

the I“.D. ()1
LLOW CREEK+26
I ————

Tourist Interest(s):

Clear Lake Park - 9 miles east of Stavely;

Willow Creek Park - 9 miles west of Stavely on Sec Hwy 527
Pine Coulee - 8 miles west of Stavely on Sec Hwy 527
Recreation - Head-Smashed-In Buffalo Jump on Sec Hwy
785

Golf Course(s):
Claresholm, Fort Macleod, Granum, Nanton and Stavely

Museum(s):
Claresholm, Fort Macleod, Granum, Nanton and Stavely
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MD COUNCIL AND THE CAO

MD Council consists of Councillors elected from each of the seven divisions of the
Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26. Elections are held every four years; with the
most recent municipal election taking place in October 2021. The position of Reeve and
Deputy Reeve are determined at each of the annual Organizational Meetings held in
October of each year.

The position of Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) is the administrative head of the
organization and reports directly to Council. The following are the elected Council
members as of October 2021 and the MD’s CAOQ:

) 4B

Maryanne Sandberg Glen Alm John Van Driesten John Kroetsch
Reeve Deputy Reeve Councillor Councillor
Division 3 Division 4 Division 1 Division 2

Earl Hemmaway Evan Berger Brian Nelson Derrick Krizsan
Councillor Councillor Councillor Chief Administrative Officer
Division 5 Division 6 Division 7

There are two Council meetings per month (on the second and fourth Wednesdays). The
public and media are welcome to attend.

The first Council Meeting of each month consists of a Municipal Planning Commission
(MPC) which all Councillors are a part of (quasi judicial board). Immediately following
Council proceeds with their regular Council meeting.

The second monthly Council Meeting consists of an Agricultural Service Board (ASB)
which consists of four members of Council and three members-at-large.

Additional meetings can include, but is not limited to, Budget and Land Use Bylaw
Meetings.
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ADMINISTRATION

The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) is the administrative head of the organization and
reports directly to Council. Reporting to the CAO in 2023 were eight directors in charge
of each of the MD’s departments;
Superintendent of Public Works, Director of Infrastructure, Director of Finance,
Director of Emergency Services & Fire Chief, Director of Planning & Development,
Director of Agricultural Services, Director of IT & GIS and Municipal Safety
Coordinator.

The following are the departments of the MD:

« Transportation Services - department includes road construction, road
maintenance, graveling, bridge construction, fleet maintenance, and asset
management.

Corporate Services - department includes finance, assessment, taxation, receivables,
payables and payroll, utilities and road allowances.

Protective Services - department includes policing and bylaw enforcement.

Fire & Emergency Services - Disaster/Emergency management., and fire training,
investigations, and fire inspections.

Agricultural Services - department includes seeding, weed control, spraying, pest
control and agricultural rentals.

Development Services - department includes development permitting, Land use
zoning amendments, Land use bylaw enforcement, public utilities and business
licenses.

IT & GIS - technology, geographic information systems (GIS).

Municipal Safety Services - administers the municipal safety program.
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ORGANIZATION CHART:
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EMERGENCY SERVICES

Kelly Starling
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Deputy
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Chief Nanton Fire
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ORGANIZATION CHART (CONTINUED):

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Roy Johnson
Public Works Manager Superintendent

Public Works

Seasonal Gravel
Crew/Equipment Gravel Crew / Equipment Purchasing Agent &

Grader Operator Operator Operator Mechanic

Grader Operator

Grader Operator

Seasonal Gravel Seasonal Gravel
Welder

Operator Operator

| Seasonal Gravel Seasonal Gravel
Cr i Cr i

Operator Operator Machanic

Grader Operator

| Grader Operator
| Grader Operator

Grader Operator ‘— Grader Operator

Grader Operator Grader Operator

Gravel Crew/Equipment
| Grader Operator L Siataon I

[SEASONAL Equipment| Graval Crev Rqupment
Operator Operator

[SEASONAL Equipment| e
Operator & Oil Dist. I——‘ ONAL Labor |

[SEASONAL Equipmentl_—‘ S ACONALTES |
Operator

INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT

Craig Pittman
Director of
Infrastructure

Public Works Manager
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ORGANIZATION CHART (CONTINUED):

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Johanne Hannas

Director of Finance

ASB DEPARTMENT

Carla Preachuk
Agricultural Fieldman

Ass't Ag Fieldman & Assistant Agricultural —
Environmental Tech Fieldman el e

| Landowner Consultant
Inspections & Surveys

ARSI, - Vegetalu.on Asset Mgmt Collection
Management Technician

SEASONAL - Vegetation
Management Technician

SEASONAL - Vegetation
Management Technician
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ORGANIZATION CHART (CONTINUED):

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Cindy Chisholm
Director of Planning &
Development

Development Officer

Economic Development
Officer /Development
Officer

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Doug Sedgwick
Director of IT & GIS

IT & Special Projects
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Strategic Plan Summary
2022-2026

MD of Willow Creek

Vision
We are a community that preserves, enhances and enriches our evolving rural way of life for all generations to
live, work and prosper as members of this farming and ranching community.

Mission

The municipality provides leadership that will ensure that all citizens can continue to enjoy a safe and sustainable
rural community that recognizes agriculture as a cornerstone.

Values

People Our History Our Environment The Principles of Honesty, Integrity and Respect

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Community Accountability Municipal Infrastructure

e Keep Policies Current and e Enhance Transparency ¢ Asset Management—Manage,
Relevant and Communication Invest and Plan for Sustainable

. . Municipal Services
e Increase Public Safety Through e Ensure Fair Electoral

High Quality Emergency Services Representation e Environmentally Sound Waste
Management Practices

e Support Rural Crime Watch

e Assist Community Groups

* Support Agriculture Collaboration

e Successfully Implement Intermunicipal Agreements

Economic Growth and Diversity ® Better Internet Service within the municipality

e Enhance Communication with Provincial Agencies

e Steady Economic Growth

Strategic Plan

This Strategic Plan identifies our key strategic priorities over a 5-year period from 2022-2026. The Strategic Plan,
and the Business Plan of each Municipal Department is updated annually as part of our budget process.
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STRATEGIC PLAN

COMMUNITY

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Keeping governance processes current
Key Initiative: Review municipal bylaws and policies to ensure continued relevance.
Success: In 2022 update the municipal land use bylaw to ensure integration of the Hamlet of Granum.
Metric for Success: M.D. of Willow Creek Land Use Bylaw is amended and updated.
Success: Ongoing review of the M.D. of Willow Creek Policy Manual to ensure relevancy
Metric for Success: Municipal policy manual size and complexity is reduced.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Increase public safety

Key Initiative: Intermunicipal Emergency Services Agreement.
Success: Monitor the Willow Creek Intermunicipal Emergency Services Agreement for effectiveness.
Metric for Success: Delivery of Fire Service is consistent across the municipality, fire operating budget
stabilizes at 2020 levels, disputes and complaints pertaining to operating and capital budgets and

emergency services response decrease year over year.

Success: Implement the fire services training program to meet the established level of service consistently on an
ongoing basis.

Metric for Success: All new firefighters complete NFPA 1001 level 1 training within 2 years of entry in to
the fire service.

Key Initiative: Support Rural Crime Watch within the municipality
Success: In 2022 support the development of a rural crime watch associations across the entire MD in partnership
with local rural crime watch associations, the provincial crime watch association, the Fort Macleod Crime Prevention
Action Committee, local citizens, the MD of Willow Creek Peace Officer Program and the RCMP
Metric for Success: Reduction in reported rural crime year over year.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Identify opportunities to assist community groups
Key Initiative: Provide administrative guidance to community groups
Success: Assist community groups in accessing grant funding.
Metric for Success: Community groups report increased access to community facility enhancement
grants, Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta funding and other grants that aid
in the sustainability of non-profit and charitable groups within the municipality.
Metric for Success: Number of community groups assisted each year increases year over year.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Support Agriculture

Key Initiative: |dentify and deliver agricultural services that will benefit to both primary agricultural producers and the
environment

Success: Support Agricultural Service Board programs and services through the annual budget process

Metric for Success: Annual reporting which demonstrates effectiveness of the ASB programs and
services.

Success: Through the municipal land use bylaw seek to limit the loss of productive agricultural lands to other
uses.
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Metric for Success: Annual reporting indicates a conversion rate lower than comparably sized rural
municipalities.
Strategic Priority: Relationship with Provincial Government

Key Initiative: Advocate for changes to provincial legislation that negatively impact municipal processes including Alberta
Health Services, Natural Resources Conservation Board and Alberta Utilities Commission

Metric for Success: Changes to legislation pertaining to quasi-legislative boards that increase transparency.

ACCOUNTABILITY

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Accessible, timely and understandable information about Council decisions, actions and
priorities.

Key Initiative: Review adoption of new mechanisms and effectiveness of municipal communications including: municipal
website, social media, newsletter and other tools utilized by the municipality to ensure the accessibility to public information
and services.

Success: Individuals and businesses are able to access information on governance, economic development and
municipal services 24/7.

Metric for Success: Review public interaction including website analytics and feedback to demonstrate an
increased use of municipal communication services and to continue to update all communication processes.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Ensure electoral representation

KEY INITIATIVE: Before December 31, 2023 a review municipal electoral boundaries is completed

METRIC FOR SuccESss: Electoral Boundaries are amended to reflect fair representation based upon best practices

ECONOMIC GROWTH & DIVERSITY

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Economic growth within the municipality.

Key Initiative: Attract new citizens, commerce and industry to the MD.

Metric for Success: One new business or industry in the Claresholm Industrial Area each year during for
the next 5 years.

Metric for Success: Population growth during the strategic planning period 2022-2026 demoenstrates
growth of population in excess of 1% and assessment growth of 2% year over year.

Metric for Success: Year over year increase in residential, commercial and industrial growth in the
Hamlet of Granum.

Key Initiative: Participate in regional economic initiatives.

Success: The MD will actively participate in regional economic committees and initiatives which will promote local
and regional growth.

Metric for Success: regional initiatives lead to demonstrable growth of commercial and industrial
development within the region on an annual basis.

Metric for Success: Annual growth of assessment base of the municipality.
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MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Manage, invest and plan for sustainable municipal services

Key Initiative: Inventory of Infrastructure Assets
Success: By the end of 2022 an inventory of municipal assets has been documented.
Key Initiative: Current Service Level Formalization
Success: By the end of 2022 all municipal services have a defined and easily understood service level.
Key Initiative: Service Costs and Risks are Documented and Understood
Success: By the end of 2023 the costs and risks associated with service delivery is documented and understood.

Key Initiative: Asset Management is normal business

Success: By the end of 2025 Asset Management is fully implemented with a Council approved Level of Service
complete with costs and risks established for municipal services.

Success: Full accountability to the public on realized service delivery through reporting mechanisms.

Success: Public feedback mechanisms are established.
Success: Service based budgeting for annual municipal operating budgets.

Success: Revenue supports sustainable service delivery

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Advocate for a regional waste to enerqy project

Key initiative: Examine options for waste to energy plant
Success: Advocate for opportunities for a waste to Energy project

Metric for Success: by 2023 a proposal for regional review is developed that is both economically and
environmentally sustainable
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COLLABORATION

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Successfully Implement Intermunicipal Agreements.

Key Initiative: Maintain all Intermunicipal Agreements.
Success: Council approval of all required Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework Agreements.

Metric for Success: The Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework Agreement enhances intermunicipal
relationships with demonstrated success.

Success: The Intermunicipal Emergency Services Agreement provides a common level of service across the
municipality.

Metric for Success: Demonstrated competency for service delivery and annual operating and capital
budgets met.

Success: The Intermunicipal Recreation Services Funding Agreement followed.

Metric for Success: Annual recreation funding agreement maintained through budgeting.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Internet Service for Municipal Citizens.

Key Initiative: Pursue internet connectivity for all municipal citizens.
Success: 90% of ratepayers have quality & affoerdable internet access by 2025 and 100% by 2030.
Metric for Success: Broadband grant to enhance connectivity in underserved areas of municipality
Key Initiative: |dentify collaboration opportunities with the private and public sector.

Success: Partner with private and public entities to enhance internet access.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Enhance Communication with the Province of Alberta for Services Received by Municipality

Key Initiative: Meet regularly with Alberta Health Services to discuss emergency medical services.

Success: The relationship between the M.D. and AHS shows marked improvement as demonstrated by improved
communication, responsiveness and action.

Metric for Success: A final decision is arrived at pertaining to the use of municipally owned ambulances
within the M.D. before the end of 2022.
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REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE

The Municipal District of Willow Creek No.26 is pleased to submit our Annual Financial
Report for the year ended December 31, 2023. The purpose of this Annual Financial
Report is to provide our ratepayers with clear and transparent understanding into the
financial information and results of the MD. The report also gives us an opportunity to
analyze and provide information on the financial information contained within.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

MD maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable
assurances for the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of financial records. The
controls are subject to regular reviews and revisions (however segregation of duties
allows administration to monitor and ensure the polices and procedures are in place (as
required). These controls include, policies set by Council, administrative procedures,
external audits, and the budgeting process.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Municipal District of Willow Creek No.26 has a number of policies relating to the
financials that are reviewed and approved by Council. These policies are designed to
ensure that there are appropriate controls in place to safeguard the MD and to ensure
that the MD is compliant with the Alberta Municipal Government Act, Canadian Public
Sector Accounting Standards, and all other applicable legislation. Some of the key areas
addressed by current policies are:
» Signing Authority

Investment Policy

Accounts Receivable Policy

Expense Claims Policy

Purchase and Tender Policy

Tangible Capital Assets Policy

Asset Management Policy

Asset Retirement Obligation Policy

There are numerous other policies in place , which are available on our website.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

Municipal District of Willow Creek No.26 has a number of internal procedures that are
used to document the procedures required to perform many of the financial tasks in the
MD'’s administration. These internal procedures ensure that the proper steps are taken for
the recording of financial transactions that promotes accuracy, consistency, and that
policies are being followed appropriately.

The MD utilizes a centralized accounting process. In this process, the Finance Department
is responsible for all common financial and computer systems used to record financial
information. This information is then used to provide financial reports to Council, and is
also used to create the MD's year end financial statements which are audited by an
external audit firm annually.
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EXTERNAL AUDITS

In accordance with Section 280 of the Municipal Government Act, EBGSEEIGNE Yep
MD Council appoints an independent auditor, to report on the Kl 0,
annual financial statements of the MD. The MD sends out a AUDYT =7 Risks
Request for proposals for a five-year audit fee to obtain ' _—
competitive audit fees. The auditors’ responsibility is to express an
opinion on whether or not the financial statements are presented
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting Standards.

v N NNG
MANAGEMENT  PLAY

The auditors have full access to all of the MD’s financial records and information, and will
meet with staff, management, and the audit committee which consists of the Reeve and
the Deputy Reeve to discuss matters relating to the audit. The auditors also provide the
MD with a management letter providing comments on the internal controls.

For the 2023 financial audit, our auditors expressed a “clean” audit opinion, indicating
that the financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects. The auditors did
not have any recommendations for improvements to the MD's internal controls during
the 2023 audit, indicating the overall effectiveness of the controls that are already in
place.

BUDGET PROCESS

In accordance with Sections 242 and 245 of the Municipal Government Act, MD Council
approves an operating and capital budget on an annual basis. Typically, the majority of
the budget is developed in September to November of the year prior to the budget, and
approved as the Interim Budget in December. The Final Budget is usually approved in
April of the following year when the last budget items are received, property assessments
are finalized, and requisitions for schools and senior foundations are available.

There is currently a 5-year Capital Plan which assists in the development of the annual
capital budget by outlining the MD’s long-term capital replacement requirements. The
Plan is currently funded by existing capital reserves and projected contributions to those
reserves. This methodology of long-term budgeting allows for more stable tax rates over
time since rates would not have to be increased in years when large projects must be
completed.

The MD prepares a 4-year operating budget each year. The upcoming year is planned in
great detail, with the 3 subsequent years being based on estimates. As each subsequent
year arrives, it is also reviewed in detail before being implemented. The MD takes into
account several factors while budgeting including current economic conditions, provincial
policy changes, and service requirements within the MD.

After the budget is approved by Council,
expenditures are controlled by formal purchasing
policies, financial systems, and financial reporting
designed to prevent budget overruns.

i
4
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The Municipal District of Willow Creek’s 2023 financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. Management is responsible
for the preparation, accuracy, objectivity, and integrity of the financial statements..
Management is in agreement with the independent auditor that the financial statements
present fairly for the MD's financial position and the results of its operations for the year
ended as at December 31, 2023.

The following Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis is also prepared by management
and is intended to explain and expand on information in the financial statements. The
discussion and analysis is not part of the actual financial statements and therefore is not
specifically audited.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Statement of Financial Position highlights the financial assets and liabilities, the non-
financial assets, and the accumulated surplus. This statement is used to evaluate the MD's
ability to finance its financial liabilities and commitments.

December 31, 2023, With Comparative Information for 2022

2023 2022 Change

FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and short-term investments 13,346,131 13,084,799 261,332
Taxes and grants in place of taxes 547,592 1,896,067 (1,348,475)
Trade and other accounts receivable 276,585 728,085 {451,500)
Land held for resale inventory 44,175 44,176 (1)

14,214,483 15,753,127 {1,538,644)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,368,973 1,079,111 289,862
Asset retirement obligation 3,232,932 3,138,769 94,163
Deferred revenue 1,468,891 3,719,968 (2,251,077)
Employee future benefits 90,045 64,245 25,800
Long-term debt 329,577 458,831 {129,254)
6,490,418 8,460,924 (1,970,506)

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 7,724,065 7,292,203 431,862

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Prepaid expenses 375,456 324,573 50,883

Inventory for consumption 1,168,756 1,401,790 {233,034)

Tangible capital assets 85,947,143 86,877,423 {930,280)
87,491,355 88,603,786 (1,112,431)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 95,215,420 95,895,989 (680,569)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Overall, there has been an decrease in the MD’s financial assets, The main reasons for the
various changes from the prior year were:

e Cash and short-term investments increased compared to the prior year. This is
mainly due to the timing of when receivables are received and interest on
savings accounts;

Tax receivables increased, in 2022 due to a Supplementary tax that was not
due till March of the following year.

Trades and other receivable decreased, primarily due that there was a
Municipal Wild Fire Grant (MWAP) that was a receivable at the end of 2021.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Overall, there has been a decrease in the financial liabilities of the MD. The main reasons
for the various changes from the prior year were:

. The accounts payable are due to a timing of receiving the year end invoices and
the following invoices as accrued in to the following year.
The balance in deferred revenue decreased mainly due to that many of the
road and sidewalk and bridge projects from 2022 were completed in 2023.

We also implement the new requirement of PSAB 3280, Asset Retirement
Obligation, and 2022 was restated. for comparison of this new requirement.

Employee future benefits increased due to succession planning for retirement
of employees in the near future.

Long-term debt decreased by the expected amount from two semi-annual
debenture repayments.

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Non-financial assets are assets that are not available to “pay off” existing liabilities and are
held to provide services for the MD. This includes capital assets (road/bridge
infrastructure, vehicles, equipment, etc) and gravel inventory. The following changes
occurred during the year:

o Capital asset value decreased during the year since annual amortization
expense was more than the value of new assets purchased, leading to
decreased combined net book value of tangible capital assets.

Inventory ~ for  consumption

decreased, primarily as a result of

previously crushed gravel being p—
used during road construction. vj/,'

“_ ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

Overall, the MD maintains a positive net financial position (financial assets exceeding
financial liabilities) of approx. $7.7 million. This is a increase from the prior year of approx.
$7.3 million. A positive net financial position allows the MD to cover its financial liabilities

and commitments with its financial assets.

5-YEAR TREND - FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

11,221,618

1,618,556

14,983,249

4,031,890

13,832,879

4,465,129

15,753,127

8,460,924

14,214,483

6,490,418

5-Year Trend

Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets

5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000

H2023 m2022 w2021 w2020 m2019

5-YEAR TREND
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO LIABILITIES

372
3.10

2.19\1_86/

2021 2020

== ==Financial Assets to Liabilities

20,000,000

Overall the Financial Assets-to-Liabilities ratio remain relatively constant with the prior
year.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS:
The accumulated surplus is made up of three components; Unrestricted Surplus,

Restricted Surplus (Reserves), and Equity in Tangible Capital Assets as outlined in
Schedule 3 of the Financial Statements.

Schedule 3 2023 2022

Unrestricted Surplus 269,480 227,964
Restricted Surplus { Reserves) 12,561,306 12,388,201
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 82,384,634 83,279,824
Accumulative Surplus 95,215,420 95,895,989

The Restricted Surplus is the combination of both the capital and operating reserves:

2023 2022

Capital Reserves 12,339,999 12,134,294
Operating Reserves 221,307 253,907
Total Restricted Surplus { Reserves) 12,561,306 12,388,201

Net Financial Assets 7,724,065 7,292,203
Inventory For Consumption 1,168,756 1,401,791
Total Funding Available 8,892,821 8,693,994

As shown above, the combination of the net financial assets and the inventory for
consumption are not sufficient to cover all reserves and are not considered to be “fully
funded” reserves.

The Equity in Tangible Capital Assets equal to the net book value (NBV) of the Tangible
Capital Assets as described in Schedule 6 (Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets).

2023 2022

Tangible Capital Assets - Cost 274,944,982 271,450,306
Tangible Capital Assets - Amortization (188,997,839) (184,572,883)
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 85,947,143 86,877,423
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

The Statement of Operations highlights the revenues and expenses of the MD. This
statement is mainly used to evaluate the MD operations as compared to the budget and
the prior year.

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget 2022
Restated
(note 3)

Revenue:
Net municipal property taxes (Schedule 4) $ 12,415,000 $ 12,411,636  $ 10,757,334
User fees and sales of goods 507,900 602,904 729,961
Government transfers for operating
(Schedule 1) 1,229,310 1,679,491 1,408,293
Return on Investments 544,394
Penalties and costs on taxes 93,281
Licenses and permits 8,930
Other revenues 1,491,003
Rentals 95,636
Franchise fees ) 32,473
Fines 13,656

Total revenue 15572,235 16,673,403 15,581,965

Expenses (Schedule 5):
Elected officials 417,400 414,937 389,910
General administration
Information technology
Fire
Disaster and emergency services
Claresholm medical clinic
Emergency services and bylaw enforcement
Transportation
Water development
Garbage collection and disposal
Cemeteries
Development and planning
Agricultural services board
Recreation boards
Parks and recreation
Libraries
Family and community support
Amortization of capital assets 6,412,130 7,467.016
Total expenses 15,526,645 21,176,968 21,055,206

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
from operations 45,590 (4,303,565) (5,473,241)

Other:
Contributed tangible capital assets 31,042 4,300
Government transfer for capital (Schedule 1) 2,610,450 3,333,174
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 981,504 315,114

3,622,996 3,652,588

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
(Schedule 2) 45,590 (680,569) (1,820,653)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 95,895,989 95,895,989 97,716,642
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 95941579 $ 95215420 3 95895989

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS- continued

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget 2022
(Restated
(note 3)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 45590 $ (680,569) $ (1,820,653)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (9,540,350) (5,812,053) (5,901,332)
Contributed assets - - (4,300)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 6,412,130 7,467,016
Gain on sale on tangible capital assets (981,504) (315,114)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital

assets 1,311,707 486,158
Net change in prepaid expense (50,883) (81,776)
Net change in inventory for consumption 233,034 498,028

Change in net financial assets (9,494,760) 431,862 328,027

Net financial assets, beginning of year 7,292 203 7,292,203 6,964,176

Net financial assets, end of year $ (2,202557) $ 7,724085 $ 7,292203

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - Continued
OPERATING REVENUES - continued

Operating Revenue Comparison

Fines

Franchise fees

Rentals

Other revenues

Licenses & permits
Penalties & costs on taxes
Returm on Investments

User fees & sales of goods

I
.
|
-
!
Net municipal property taxes |

5- 52,000,000 54,000,000 56,000,000 58,000,000510,000,000:12,000,000 14,000,000

e Uszer foes & Pershtics &

municipal cales of Return omn - Licerses & Cither Rentals Franchize Fines

property goods Investments e permits revenues fees
tames

®BUDGET 512415000 5507500 | 5254000 485,000 55,500 5520175 488,350 533,000 530,000
m 2023 512,411 635 5502904 | 5544354 93,281 8930 $1491,003 | $95636 532,473 513,656
m 2022 510,757,334 5725150  S189 599 581,132 59 408 $2262476 | 588351 534,559

W BUDGET m 2023 m2022

The following is an analysis of operating revenue and some of the other revenues from
operations compared to the budget and the prior year:

Some of the major variances from budget and the prior year include:

Net Municipal taxes increased from 2022 to 2023 significant assessment
growth in the non-residential property class attributable to a renewable
energy project was captured in 2022 as a result of the supplementary
assessment undertaken by the municipality in 2022.

Increase in User fees in 2022 due to a increase in fire calls from all fire
departments .

Investment revenue was higher than budget in 2023 due to the increase in
the interest rate. The Bank of Canada rate increased significantly throughout
the year.

Other revenue in 2022 was due to a supplementary tax issued in December
2022 and with a due date of March 31, 2023. This supplementary tax
which accounted a increase in the outstanding taxes receivables in 2022.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - Continued

OPERATING EXPENSES

The operating expenses are presented on the Statement of Operations by each separate
department. They are also redisplayed by the type of expense in Schedule 5 (Schedule of
Expenses by Object). The following is an analysis of some of the expenses compared to
budget and the prior year

Some of the major variances from budget and the prior year include:

Operating Expenses

Transfers to local boards & agencies

Materials, goods, supplies & utilities

Contracted & general services

Salaries, wages & benefits

S- $2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 $8,000,000

Salaries, wages & Contracted & general Materials, goods, Transfers to local
benefits services supplies & utilities boards & agencies

W BUDGET $7,124,410 $3,009,750 $4,286,585 $361,100
W 2023 $6,946,752 $2,506,548 $4,451,293 $338,400
m 2022 $6,442,452 $2,545,611 $3,762,675 $291,300

B BUDGET m2023 m2022

o Seasonal staff start in the spring and usually end in the fall. However, weather
permitting some seasonal can continue on with road maintenance, gravel
hauling to gravel pits and other duties if they are required.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - Continued

OPERATING EXPENSES - continued
The following is an analysis of the remaining expenses compared to budget and the prior

year
o Interest is comparable to prior year and budget. Slight reduction from budget

and prior year is due to lower bank service charges than expected.

Other Expenses are significantly lower than the prior year as the prior year
included the write off significant amounts owing from oil & gas companies for
property taxes which were determined to be uncollectible. This expense was
expected to be partially offset by credits from the province with respect to the
education portion of these taxes.

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets is overall comparable to both however,
the MD does not budget for amortization, we budgeted a small amount for the
amortization of bridges. We also review our TCA policy on a annual basis and
adjust the useful if it required by on the use of the asset.

Operating Expenses - Continued

Other
Interest

Transfers to organizations & individuals .

S- $2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 $8,000,000

Transfers to
organizations & Interest Other
individuals
m BUDGET $456,450 $8,350 $50,000 $230,000
m 2023 $486,736 $7,997 $27,112 $6,412,130

W 2022 $465,530 $9,660 $70,962 $7,467,016

Amortization of
tangible capital assets

B BUDGET m2023 m2022
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - Continued

OPERATING EXPENSES - continued
Schedules 2 (Schedule of Segment Disclosure) present the operating expenses by major
segments which are a combination of the departments that have similar activities.

Operating Expenses - Department

Community Services
Agricultural
Development & Planning
Utilities

Transportation
Protective Services

General Government

$1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000 $7,000,000 $8,000,000 $9,000,000

Community
Services

General Protective . e Development &
3 Transportation Utilities ;
Government Services Planning

M Budget $3,488,960 $1,789,900 $6,978,110 $1,005,050 $662,650 $652,425 $719,550
2023 $2,498,616 $1,799,413 $7,694,427 $745,203 $633,388 $625,576 $768,215
m 2022 $2,535,125 $1,598,569 $6,776,869 $785,311 $620,725 $618,398 $653,193

Agricultural

M Budget 2023 m2022

» Transportation Services showed more actual expense than budget relating to
the increase of maintenance and construction project.

Utilities saw significantly decrease compared to the prior year, this is due to the
current and prior years seeing a decease in water usage due to drought
conditions.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets reconciles the difference between
opening and closing net financial assets as compared to the MD’s net income for the
year. It does this by showing how much money was spent on or recovered from non-
financial assets, such as capital assets or inventory.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Statement of Cash Flows summarizes the sources and uses of cash and cash
equivalents. It reconciles the opening and closing cash positions of the MD using the
operating revenues and expenses, capital funding and expenditures, investment and
financing transactions.

As the revenues and expenses include “non-cash” transactions such as amortization
expense, these “non-cash” transactions are removed from the income to indicate the
actual effect on cash.

SCHEDULES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are currently 7 schedules in the financial statements, which are used to provide
additional detail to the financial statements. These schedules include:

Schedule 1 - Schedule of Government Transfers

Schedule 2 - 2023 Schedule of Segmented Disclosure
Schedule 3 - Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus
Schedule 4 - Schedule of Net Municipal Property Taxes
Schedule 5 - Schedule of Expenses by Object

Schedule 6 - Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

Schedules 3 and 6 provide additional details on the accumulated surplus and tangible
capital assets as presented in the Statement of Financial Position.

Schedules 1,2,4,5 and 7 provide additional details on the revenues and expenses as
presented in the Statement of Operations.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes to the financial statements provide additional detail. These notes include the
following:

Significant accounting policies
Details of Financial Statement balances
Segment reporting details
Disclosure of additional information not recorded in the financials
e Debt limits
o Council and CAO remuneration
o Local Authorities Pension Plan
o Commitments and contingencies
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Council has adopted, and regularly reviews its Strategic Plan, and every decision by both
Council and Administration is guided by this impeortant document. Decisions ranging from
operational and capital budgets and policy issues of every type are prioritized and
undertaken with the goal of achieving the long-term objectives outlined in the Strategic
Plan.

Each month | report to Council on how effective the municipal organization has been in
meeting the objectives determined by Council. On a monthly basis | present reports from
each department including Agricultural Service Board, Emergency Services, Planning
and Development, Public Works and Finance which detail the activities that have been
undertaken in the prior month to achieve the goals determined by Council.

2023 brought many challenges and successes. Locally one of the most significant issues
was related to the drought conditions. The Council, for the third consecutive year, issued
a 'Declaration of Agricultural Disaster’. Declarations of agricultural disaster made by
municipalities bring awareness upper tiers of government but do not factor into whether
an AgriRecovery program will be initiated at all. That determination is data based as
evaluated by provincial, territorial and federal officials. Fortunately, a number of key
support programs were made available to producers. We are all hoping for higher rainfall
this growing season.

Council has identified infrastructure maintenance as a priority for a number of years.
Along with new budget requirements pertaining to funding future expenditures related to
asset retirement the municipality has been actively engaged in completing goals related
to asset management.

One of the key aspects of asset management is not only understanding the current
condition of infrastructure but also the ‘level of service’ that the MD provides. ‘Level of
Service’ describes the outcomes that municipal residents experience through the services
that the municipal assets provide including roadways, water and waste water, planning
services, bylaw enforcement, emergency services, safety codes, waste collection and
recycling and other services.

A key objective identified by administration was to identify ways to improve road
maintenance. A system of effective grading has been identified and district grader
operators are in the process of being trained to this new system. We have determined
that the results of the grading are superior with harder roads that are less likely to
washboard between grading cycles and in time all 9 grader districts will be adopting the
new process.

During 2024 an aggressive plan to reshape approximately 50-75 km’s of roads will be
undertaken with the removal of road shoulders and recrowning of the roads to improve
drainage as the goal. We request your patience for traffic delays that may arise because
of the construction associated with these projects.

There are many projects planned for 2024. Since 2006 the MD has managed the
Southern Alberta Ortho Photo Project on behalf of 10 rural municipalities in our region
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FUTURE OUTLOOKS (CONTINUED):

along with numerous irrigation districts and a number of Towns and Villages. This project
ensures that we have up to date aerial photos for use by municipal staff and the public as
these photos are available online through our website. In the attached financials you will
note that every three years administrative expenses and revenues each rise by
approximately $800,000 — these entries account for this ongoing program.

Capital projects in 2024 include completing the stormwater project in the Hamlet of
Granum, road construction and rehabilitation, water and wastewater projects at the
Claresholm Industrial airport which will ensure that aging infrastructure will continue to
function for many more years and numerous bridge and infrastructure projects that will
proceed if we are approved for funding by Alberta Transportation.

Often the results of policy decisions aren’t fully understood for years, only when
historical data is available can we determine their effectiveness.

Building an effective and resilient team doesn’t happen overnight. We firmly believe in
the wise words of Ziad Abdelnour: “Trust is earned, respect is given, and loyalty is
demonstrated. Betrayal of any of those is to lose all three.”

Congratulations to our incredible staff for their professionalism and dedication to the

citizens of the MD of Willow Creek. It is truly a pleasure to work together with them each
day.

Respectfully submitted,

Derrick Krizsan C.L.G.M.
Chief Administrative Officer
MD of Willow Creek No. 26
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KPMG LLP

3410 Fairway Plaza Road South
Lethbridge AB T1K 7T5
Canada

Tel 403 380 5700

Fax 403 380 5760

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Reeve and Members of Council of the Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Municipal District of Willow
Creek No. 26 (the Municipality), which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023
. the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended

. the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then
ended

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Municipality as at December
31, 2023, and its consolidated results of operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our
auditor's report.

We are independent of the Municipality in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of
independent member firms affliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a
Swiss entity.

KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLF.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise frem fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit

We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

L
e 22

Chartered Professional Accountants

Lethbridge, Canada
April 10, 2024
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Decamber 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2022
Restatad
(note 3)

Financial Assets:
Cash and short-term investments (note 4) $ 13,346,131 % 13,084,799
Taxes and grants in place of taxes (nofe 5) 547 592 1,896,067
Trade and other accounts receivable (note §) 276,585 728,085
Land held for resala inventony 44 175 44 176
14 214 483 168,763,127

Financial Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,368,873 1,078,111
Asset refirernent ohligation (note 11) 3232932 3,138,769
Deferrad revenue (nole 7) 1,468,691 3,719,968
Employes future benefits (ncte B) 890,045 64,245
Long-term debt {note 8} 329 577 458,821
6,480 418 8,460,924

Met financial assels T.724 DES 7,292 203

NMon-Financial Assets:
Prepaid expenses 375 456 324 573
Inventory for consumption 1,168,756 1,401,780
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 6) 85 847 143 86,8677 423

a7 491,355 58,603,786

Commitments
Contingent liabilities (note 17)

Accumulated surplus {note 10 and Schedule 3} % 95 215420 $ 55,895,089

See goocompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Council: E? i
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget 2022
Restated
(note 3)

Revenue:

Net municipal property taxes (Schedule 4) $ 12,415,000 ¢ 12,411,635 $ 10,757,334
User fees and sales of goods 507,900 602,904 729,961
Government transfers for operating

(Schedule 1) 1,229,310 1,579,491 1,408,293
Return on Investments 254,000 544,394 189,599
Penalties and costs on taxes 85,000 93,281 81,132
Licenses and permits 9,500 8,930 9,408
Other revenues 920,175 1,491,003 2,266,535
Rentals 88,350 95,636 88,361
Franchise fees 33,000 32,473 34,559
Fines 30,000 13,656 16,783

Total revenue 15,572,235 16,873,403 15,581,965

Expenses (Schedule 5):
Elected officials 417,400 414,937 389,910
General administration 2,250,335 1,566,586 1,655,785
Information technology 821,225 517,093 489,430
Fire 705,250 776,358 636,755
Disaster and emergency services 41,750 42 501 41,429
Claresholm medical ¢linic 70,600 4,647 4,583
Emergency services and bylaw enforcement 972,300 975,907 915,802
Transportation 6,978,110 7,694,427 6,776,869
Water development 760,550 511,694 564,512
Garbage collection and disposal 244 500 233,509 220,799
Cemeteries 32,000 51,918 24,599
Development and planning 630,650 581,470 596,126
Agricultural services board 652,425 625,576 618,398
Recreation boards 338,600 338,400 291,300
Parks and recreation 34,300 58,552 27,422
Libraries 132,850 150,308 127,111
Family and community support 213,800 220,955 207,360
Amortization of capital assets 230,000 6,412,130 7,467,016
Total expenses 15,526,645 21,176,968 21,055,206

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
from operations 45,590 {4,303,565) (5,473,241)

Other:
Contributed tangible capital assets 31,042 4,300
Government transfer for capital (Schedule 1) 2,610,450 3,333,174
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 981,504 315,114

3,622,996 3,652,588

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
(Schedule 2) 45,590 (680,569) (1,820,653)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 95,895,989 95,895,989 97,716,642

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 95941579 $ 95215420 $ 95,895,989

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consclidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget 2022
(Restated
{note 3)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 3 45590 % (680,569) $ (1,820,653)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (9,540,350) (5,812,053) (5,901,332)
Contributed assets - - (4,300)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 6,412,130 7,467,016
Gain on sale on tangible capital assets - {981,504) {315,114)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital

assets 1,311,707 486,158
Net change in prepaid expense (50,883) (81,776)
Net change in inventory for consumption 233,034 498,028

Change in net financial assets (9,494,760) 431,862 328,027

Net financial assets, beginning of year 7,292,203 7,292,203 6,964,176

Net financial assets, end of year $ (2,202557) $ 7724065 § 7,292203

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26 - 2023 Annual Financial Report



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023

2022
Restated
{note 3)

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Deficiency of revenues over expenses $ (680,569)
Non-cash items included in excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,412,130
Contributed tangible capital assets (31,042)
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets {981, 504)

$ (1,820,653)

7,467,016
(4,300)
(315,114)

4,719,015
Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities:

Long-term receivable 1,348,475
Taxes and grants in place of taxes 451,500
Trade and other receivables -
Land held for resale inventory 1
Prepaid expenses {50,883)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 289,862
Deferred revenue (2,251,077)
Inventory for consumption 233,034
Employee future benefits 25,800
Increase in asset retirement obligations 94 163

5,326,049

(1,770,927)
2,021,696
(12)
(81,777)
(135,603)
1,127,541
498,026
(7,106)
91,421

4,859,890

Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (5,781,011)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,311,707

7,070,208

(5,257,558)
486,158

(4,469,304)

Financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt (129,254)

(4,771,400)

(127,804

(129,254)

(127,804)

Increase in cash and short-term investments 261,332

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 13,084,799

2,171,004

10,013,795

Cash and short-term investments, end of year $ 13,346,131

$ 13,084,799

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Schedule 3 - Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Equity in 2022
Restricted  tangible capital Restated
Unrestricted surplus assets 2023 (note 3)

Balance, beginning of year 227,964 $ 12388201 §$ 83279824 §$ 95895989 $ 100,120,216
Opening ARO adjustment = - - - (2,403,574)

Deficiency of revenues over expenses (680,569) - e (680,569) (1,820,653)
Transferred to restricted surplus (173,105) 173,105 - - -
Current year funds used for tangible capital assets (5,781,011) 5 5,781,011 = =
Contributed tangible capital assets (31,042) = 31,042 - -
Net book value of tangible capital assets disposed 330,203 5 (330,203) - -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,184,418 - (6,184,418) » =
Amortization of ARO expense 227,712 - (227,712) - -
Accretion expense 94,163 - (94,163) - =
Increase in debt (129,253) - 129,253 - -
Change in accumulated surplus 41,516 173,105 (895,190) (680,569) (4,224,227)

Balance, end of year 269,480 $ 12,561,306 $ 82384634 $ 95215420 $ 95895989

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Schedule 6 - Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2022
Land Engineered Machinery and Assets under Restated
Land __improvements Buildings structures equipment Vehicles construction (note 3)

Cost:

Balance, beginning of year 6,740,654 $ 716,595 § 13,609,572 § 222,298,661 § 17786737 § 7,044,430 5 1,199,640 $ 269,396289 § 265281507

Prior period adjustments - - 320,232 1,716,541 17,244 § - - $ 2054017 2,054,017

Acquisition of tangible capital assets 61,871 48171 149,067 2,734,339 2,453,819 333,744 = 5,781,011 5,257,558

Construction in progress N - (6.459) 291,160 - - (284,701) = =

Contributed tangible capital assets = = 31,042 - - 31,042 4,300
Disposal of tangible capital assets (1) " " - (2,317,376) - - (2.317,377) (1,147,076)
Balance, end of year 6,802,524 764,766 14,072,412 227,040,701 17,971,466 7378174 914,939 274,944,982 271,450,306

Accumulated amortization:

Balance, beginning of year 236,311 3,015,203 166,624,447 9,327,417 3,731,550 182,934,928 176,671,655
Prior period adjustments - 163,677 1,467,379 6,898 - 1,637,954 1,410,244
Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - (1,987,173) " (1,987,173) (976,032)
Amortization 27,863 225,276 4,201,430 1,364,380 365,470 6,184,419 7,239,305
Asset retirement obligation amortization . 5280 221,569 862 - 227,711 227,711

Bglence;end.of yedr 264,174 3409436 172,514,825 8,712,384 4,097,020 188,997,839 184,572,883

Nebbookivalusiottangibleicapitaliassets 6,802,524 500,592 10,662,976 54,525,876 9,259,082 3,281,154 914,939 1,410,244 86,877,423

2022 Net book value of tangible capital assets ¢ g740654 3 480,284 § 10750924 § 55923376 § _ 8.469.665 §  3:312.880 § 1199640 § 86,877.423
I e — I
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Schedule 4 - Schedule of Net Municipal Property Taxes

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget 2023 2022
General taxation:
Real property tax $ 8603338 $ 8606440 $ 8,450,926
Special tax - Claresholm 50,000 21,216 -
Linear property tax 8,668 950 8,668,503 6,875,554
Government grants in place
of property taxes 11,977 5135 11,568
17,334,265 17,301,204 15,338,048
Requisitions:
Alberta School Foundation Fund 3,770,270 3,770,270 3,698,335
Claresholm Recreation 50,000 21,000 -
Provincial Policing costs 440,662 439,066 324,044
Seniors Foundations 584,131 584,131 485,039
Designated Industrial Property 74202 74,202 73,296
4,919,265 4,889,659 4,580,714
Net municipal property tax $ 12415000 $ 12411635 $ 10,757,334
Schedule 1 - Schedule of Government Transfers
Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022
Budget 2023 2022
Transfers for operating:
General administration $ 132,700 3 506,820 $ 349,059
Bylaw & emergency services 12,675 - 34,594
Family and community support 171,000 176,764 170,993
Agricultural services board 160,000 192,972 150,712
Roads, streets, walks, lighting 752,935 702,935 702,935
1,229,310 1,579,491 1,408,293
Transfers for capital:
Provincial government - 2,610,450 3,333,174
Total govemment transfers $ 1,229310 $ 4189941 $ 4741467
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Schedule 5 - Schedule of Expenses by Object

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2022
Restated
Budget (note 3)

Salaries, wages and benefits $ 7124410 $ 69465752 3 6442452
Contracted and general services 3,009,750 2,506,548 2545 611
Materials, goods and utilities 4,286,585 4,451,293 3,762,675
Transfers to local boards 361,100 338,400 291,300
Interest and bank charges 8,350 7,997 9,660
Transfers to organizations and individuals 456,450 486,736 465 530
Other 50,000 2%A12 70,962
Amortization 230,000 6,412,130 7,467,016

Total expenses by object $ 15526645 $ 21176968 §$ 21055206

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Schedule 2 - Schedule of Segmented Disclosures

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Bytaw &
General emergency Disaster Protective  Transportation  Planring and Parks & Agricultural  Environmental Restated

government __services services _services (Fire) services _ development recreation __service board services note 3

Revenue

Net municipal taxes $12411,635 - - - $ - - $ - 12,411,635 10.757.334
Govemment transfers 683584 - - - 702,935 - - 192972 - - 1,579,491 1417173
User fees and sales of goods 19616 = 5 329634 44391 129,309 - 70,105 9,849 = 602,904 725,190
Return on investments 544 304 & ? e 7 = 544 394 189,599
Rentals =

Penalties and cost of taxes 93281 & & &

4336 - - 13,300 12,000 95636 88,361
- - - - - 93281 81,132
Franchise fees 32473 - - - - - - - - - 32473 34,559
Fines 13656 - - - - - - - -
Licenses and permits
ther

- - - - - 8930 - - - - 8,930 9,408
123074 179822 - 198,164 528500 500 47733 10,684 402426 = 1,491,003 2262426
Gain on disposal of tangible capital

assets 981504 - = . . - . - - - 981,504 315114
Contributed Assets 31,042 31,042 4,300

Govemment grant capital 2610450 z = z = z 2,610450 3333174

14,934,259 179,822 - 527,798 3890712 138739 287061 424275 20,496,399 19,234,553

Expenses:

Salaries, wages and benefits 1500802 763,367 8913 3,865,797 378,923 2 428 950 5 " 6,946,752 6442452
Contracted and general services 635584 94,380 490,088 736423 198 487 9692 46,227 252612 12,823 2,506,548 2,545,611
Materials, goods, and utiities 298494 118,160 277357 3,069,708 4,060 48 860 150,400 419619 52,366 4451293 3,762,675
Transfers to local boards - - - - - 338,400 - - - 338400 291300
Other . 2 2 = z

Interest and bank charges g = 3 = . = = . 5 .
Transfers to organizations and individuals = . < 22500 = = . 72972 141,683
Amortization 173.969 74467 381.158 5718.939 14721 42095 6781 =

2893539 1,050,374 1,157516 13,413,367 581470 411673 667,672 751,984 206,872 21,176,968 21,055,206

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over

eernses $ 12.040.720 § (870.552) § (2,718) $  (9.522655) § (442.731) § @‘940) $ @‘611) $ 327.709) § (140872) $ 680569) $ (1.820.653
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2023

1. Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements of the Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26 (the
"Municipal District" or "M.D.") are the representations of management prepared in accordance
with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. Significant aspects of the accounting
policies adopted by the Municipal District are as follows:

{a) Reporting entity:

The consclidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses,
changes in accumulated surplus and change in financial position of the reperting entity.
This entity is comprised of the municipal operations plus all of the organizations that are
owned or controlled by the municipality and are, therefore, accountable to the Council for
the administration of their financial affairs and resources. Included with the Municipal
District are the following: Clear Lake Park Campground, Pine Coulee Campground, Willow
Creek Campground, Hamlet of Granum.

The schedule of taxes levied also includes requisitions for education, health, social and
other external organizations that are not part of the municipal reporting entity.

The statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external
parties. Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated.

{b) Basis of accounting:

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services
and/or the legal obligation to pay.

Funds from external parties and earnings therecn restricted by agreement or legislation
are accounted for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.

Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties
pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be used for certain
programs, in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets.
In addition, certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have
yet to be performed. Revenue is recegnized in the period when the related expenses are
incurred, services performed or the tangible capital assets are acquired.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(¢) Cash andtemporary investments:

Cash and temporary investments includes cash on hand and short-term deposits, which
are highly liguid with original maturities of less than three months from the date of
acquisition.

(d) Investments:

Investments consist of funds con deposit. As the M.D. has the ability and the intent to hold
these investments to maturity they have been recorded at amortized cost. Investment
premiums and discounts are amortized over the term of the respective investments. For
investments recorded at amortized cost, when there has been a loss in the value that is
other than a temporary decling, the respective investment is written down to its realizable
value. As all investments are recorded at amortized cost, there are no fair value
adjustments which are not recognized through the Statement of Operations, as such, no
Statement of Unrealized Gains or Losses is presented.

(e} Government transfers:

Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are
not the result of an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or
the result of a direct financial return.

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period
in which events giving rise to the transfer cccur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be
determined.

f)  Inventories for resale:

Land inventory held for resale is recorded as the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost includes costs for land acguisition and improvements required to prepare the land for
servicing such as clearing, stripping and leveling. Related development costs incurred to
provide infrastructure such as water and wastewater services, roads, sidewalks and street
lighting are recorded as tangible capital assets under their respective function.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

1. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(g) Asset Retirement Obligations:

Asset retirement obligations (ARQO) are legal obligations associated with the retirement of a
tangible capital assets (TCA). Asset retirement activities include all activities relating to an
asset retirement obligation. These may include, but are not limited to;

decommissioning or dismantling a tangible capital asset that was acquired,
constructed or developed,;

remediation of contaminaticn of a tangible capital asset created by its normal use;
post-retirement activities such as monitoring; and

constructing other tangible capital assets to perform post-retirement activities.

A liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized when, as at the financial reporting
date:

{a) there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset;
{b) the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has cccurred;

(c) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
(d)

d) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

When a liability for asset retirement obligation is recognized, asset retirement costs related
to recognized tangible capital assets in productive use are capitalized by increasing the
carrying amount of the related asset and are amortized over the estimated useful life of the
underlying tangible capital asset. Asset retirement costs related to unrecognized tangible
capital assets and those not in productive use are expensed.

Contaminated sites liability:

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive or live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability
for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when a site is not in productive use
and is management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation,
maintenance and monitoring.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued):
{iy Requisition over-levy and under-levy:

Over-levies and under-levies arise from the difference between the actual property tax levy
made to cover each requisition and the actual amount requisiticned.

If the actual levy exceeds the requisition, the over-levy is accrued as a liability and property
tax revenue is reduced. Where the actual levy is less than the requisition amount, the
under-levy is accrued as a receivable and as property tax revenue.

Requisition tax rates in the subsequent year are adjusted for any over-levies or under-
levies of the prior year.

Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and
are not intended for sale in the normal course of operations.

i. Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Assets Years

Buildings 25-100
Land improvements 15-45
Engineered structures 15-100
Machinery and equipment 5-25
Vehicles 5-25

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued):
{)) Non-financial assets (continued):

ii. Contribution of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the date
of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

iii. Inventories:

Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement
cost.

iv. Asset impairment:

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the Municipal District's ability to provide goods and services, or when the
value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset are less
than their book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as an expense.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the pericd. Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial
statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. Significant areas
subject to such estimates and assumptions include the estimated useful life of tangible
capital assets, asset retirement cbligations, taxes and grants in place of taxes, and land
held for resale. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Recent accounting pronouncements:

The following summarizes the upcoming changes to the Public Sector Accounting Standards by
the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSAB). In 2024, the Municipal District will
continue to assess the impact and prepare for the adoption of these standards. While the timing
of standard adoption can vary, certain standards must be adopted concurrently.

(a) PS 3400 - Revenue:

This section provides guidance on how to account for and report on revenue, specifically
addressing revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateral transactions. This
standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

PS 3160 - Public Private Partnerships:

The Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board issued a new standard, PS 3160, Public
Private Partnerships in April 2021. This section establishes standards for the recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of infrastructure procured through certain
types of public private partnership arrangements.

This section is effective for fiscal years beginning cn or after April 1, 2023 and may be
applied retroactively with or without prior period restatement. Early adoption is permitted.

PSG 8 - Purchased Intangibles:

The Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board issued a new guideline, PSG 8 - Purchased
Intangibles. This new guideline explains the scope of the intangibles now allowed to be
recognized in financial statements given the removal of the recognition prohibition relating
to purchased intangibles in Section PS 1000. The key aspects of this guideline are:

A definition of purchased intangibles.

Examples of items that are not purchased intangibles.

References to other guidance in the PSA Handbook on intangibles.

Reference to the asset definition general recognition criteria and the GAAP hierarchy
for accounting for purchased intangibles.

This guideline applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. Early adoption is
permitted.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

3. Change in accounting policy:

Effective January 1, 2023, the Municipal District adopted the new accounting standard PS 3280
Asset Retirement Cbligations and applied the standard using the modified retroactive approach
with restatement of prior year comparative information.

On the effective date of the PS 3280 standard, the Municipal District recognized the following to
conform to the new standard;

» asset retirement obligations, adjusted for accumulated accretion to the effective date;

» asset retirement cost capitalized as an increase to the carrying amount of the related
tangible capital assets in productive use;

s accumulated amortization on the capitalized cost; and

s adjustment to the opening balance of the accumulated surplus/deficit.

Amounts are measured using informaticn, assumptions and discount rates where applicable
that are current on the effective date of the standard. The amount recognized as an asset
retirement cost is measured as of the date the asset retirement obligation was incurred.
Accumulated accretion and amoertization are measured for the period from the date the liability
would have been recognized had the provisions of this standard been in effect to the date as of
which this standard is first applied.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Change in accounting policy (continued):

Impact on the prior year's financial statements as a result of the change in accounting policy is
as follows:

2022

As previously Adjustment
reported recognized As restated

Statement of Operations
Revenue $ 19,239,324 - 19,235,324
Expense 20,731,303 21,055,208

Annual surplus (deficit) (1,501,521) (319,132) (1,820,653)

Accumulated surplus (deficit) at beginning

of year 100,120,216 (2,403,574) 97,716,642
Accumulated surplus (deficit) at end of

year 98,618,695 (2,722,706) 95,895,989

Statement of Financial Position
Financial asset 15,753,127 - 15,753,127
Liability 13,832 879 3,138,769 16,971,648
Net financial assets (debt) 10,430,972 (3,138,769) 7,292,203

Non-financial asset 88,187,723 416,063 88,603,786

Net assets (net liabilities) 98,618,695 (2,722,706) 95895989

Statement of Cash flows
Annual surplus (deficit) (1,501,521) {319,132) (1,820,653)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 7,239,305 227,711 7,467,016
Net financial assets (net debt) 10,430,972 (3,138,769) 7,292,203

Statement of Change in Net Financial
Assets
Annual surplus (deficit) (1,501,521) (319,132) (1,820,653)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 7,239,305 227,711 7,467,016
Net financial assets (net debt) at
beginning of year 9,367,750 (2,403,574) 6,964,176
Net financial assets (net debt) at end of
year 10,430,972 (3,138,769) 7,292,203
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Change in accounting policy (continued):

The Municipal District also adopted the new accounting standards PS 1201 Financial Statement
Presentation, PS 3450 Financial Instruments, PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation, and PS
3401 Portfolio Investments effective January 1, 2023.

The adoption of these standards did not impact the current year or prior year financial

statements or presentation of the Municipal District's financial position, cperations, or cash
flows.

Cash and short-term investments:

2023 2022

$ 13,346,131 $ 13,084,799

Cash includes Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26 amounts of $12,991,965 (2022 -
$12,303,583) and Hamlet of Granum amounts of $354,166 (2022 — $781,218).

Temporary investments are short-term deposits with maturities of twelve months or less. The
Municipal District did not have any temporary investments in 2023 or 2022.

Included in cash and temporary investments is a restricted amount of $1,456,718 (2022 -

$3,719,968) received from senior levels of government and held exclusively for capital projects
(note 7).

Taxes and grants in place of taxes:

Taxes and grants in place of taxes:
Current taxes and grants in place of taxes 480,706 $ 1,855,364
Arrears taxes and grants in place of taxes 90,723 51,470

571,429 1,906,834

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (23,837) (10,767)

247,592 $ 1,896,067
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Trade and other receivables:

2023

2022

Trade and other accounts receivable
Goods and services tax receivable

225,796
65,142

774,746
71,702

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

290,938

(14,353)

846,448

(118,363)

276,585

728,085
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Deferred revenue:

2023

2022

Deferred revenue, beginning of year $ 3,719,968

Funds received in the year:
Operating 100,718
Capital 957,486

$ 2,592,427

1,163,535
4,220,986

1,058,204

Amounts recognized in revenue during the year:
Operating (656,145)
Capital (2,653,136)

5,384,521

(145,275)
(4,111,705)

(3,309,281)

Deferred revenue, end of year 1,468,891

(4,256,980)

$ 3,719,968

Deferred revenue is comprised of:
Dead Stock Removal Grant 3,808

Prepaid property tax 290,506
2022123 Fire Services Training Program 12,173
2021/22 Alberta Community Partnership Strategic

Initiatives 280,892
Community Foundation Grant -
Land Sales -
Disaster Services 23,595
Other 6,999

Capital:

Municipal Sustainability Initiative 3,188
Alberta Community Resilience 681,852
Federal Gas Tax 165,878

4,064
271,776

350,000
25,000
506,223
23,595
5,536

648,792
1,403,805
481,177

1,468,891

$ 3,719,968
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

8. Employee future benefits:

2023 2022

Vacation pay $ 34,826 3 28,004
Banked overtime 13,542 8,781
Sick time accrual 41,677 26,460

$ 90,045 $ 64,245

9. Debt:

2023 2022

Tax supported debentures % 329,577 $ 458,831

The current portion of long-term debt amounts to $130,718 (2022 - $129,253). Principal and
interest repayments are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 130,718 $ 335 $ 134,074
2025 132,199 1,875 134,074
2026 66,660 377 67,037
$ 329577 % 5608 $ 335185

Debenture debt is repayable to Alberta Municipal Financing Corporation and bears interest at
the rates of 1.13% per annum, before Provincial subsidy, and matures in 2026. Debenture debt
is issued on the credit and security of the Municipal District at large.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

10. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in tangible

capital assets as follows:

2023

2022
Restated
{note 3)

Unrestricted surplus

Restricted surplus:
Operating:
Granum
Granum Cemetery
Discretionary grants
Physicians recruitment
Capital:
Fire
Capital acquisition reserve
Equipment
Moon River water system
Claresholm Medical Centre
Disaster Services
Landfill
Protective services
Claresholm Industrial Airport
Roads
Granum equipment
Granum other equipment
Granum land development
Granum water system replacement
Bridge file
Gravel pit reclamation
Buildings
Environmental Buildings

269,480

179,416
691
41,200

524,890
2,785,361
1,547,861

380,149
300,000
16,683
187,789
218,190
4,247,534
121,246
(1,211)
44,434
132,300
1,103,432
100,000
531,341
100,000

227,964

179,416
30,000
3,291
41,200

519,803
3,742,274
1,547,861
85,573
314,149
300,000
16,683
427 154
218,190
2,347,535
518,276
108,830
44,434
102,300
1,103,432
100,000
537,800
100,000

Equity in tangible capital assets

12,561,306

82,384,634

12,388,201

83,279,824

$ 95,215,420

$ 95,895,989
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

10. Accumulated surplus (continued):

2022
Restated
(note 3)

Equity in tangible capital assets:
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 6) $274,944,982 $271,450,306
Accumulated amortization (Schedule 6) (188,997,839) (184,572,882)
Loans related to capital assets (329,577) (458,831)
Asset retirement obligation (3,232,832) (3,138,769)

$ 82,384,634 $ 83,279,824

11. Asset retirement obligations and environmental liabilities:

2023 2022

Asset retirement obligations, beginning of year $ 3,138,769 $ 3,047,349
Accretion expense 94,163 91,420

$ 3232932 $ 3,138,769

Tangible capital assets with associated retirement obligations include buildings. The M.D. has
asset retirement obligations to remove hazardous asbestos fiber containing materials from
various buildings under its control. Regulations require the M.D. to handle and dispose of the
asbestos in a prescribed manner when it is disturbed, such as when the building undergoes
renovations or is demelished. Although timing of the asbestos removal is conditional on the
building undergoing rencvations or being demolished, regulations create an existing obligation
for the M.D. to remove the asbestos when asset retirement activities occur.

Asset retirement obligations are initially measured as of the date the legal obligation was
incurred, based on management's best estimate of the amount required to retire tangible capital
assets and subsequently remeasured taking into account any new information and the
appropriateness of assumptions used. The estimate of the liability is based on a quote from a
third-party who completed a survey and supplemental sampling at all M.D. buildings.

Asset retirement obligations are expected to be settled over the next 10 to 20 years.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

12. Debt limits:

Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by
Alberta Regulation 255/2000 for the Municipal District be disclosed as follows:

2023 2022

Total debt limit $ 25,310,105 $ 23,372,948
Total debt (329,577) (458,831)

Amount of debt limit unused 24 980,528 22914117

Debt servicing limit 4,218,351 3,895,491
Debt servicing (134,074) (134,074)

Amount of debt servicing unused $ 4084277 $ 3,761,417

The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the Municipal district (as defined in Alberta
Regulation 255/2000) and the debt service is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring
debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These
thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities that could
be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not represent the
financial stability of the Municipal District. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted
as a whole.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

13. Local Authorities Pension Plan:

The Municipal District participates in a multi-employer defined pension plan. The plan is
accounted for as a defined contribution plan.

Employees of the Municipal District participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP),
which is one of the plans covered by the Alberta Public Sector Pension Plans Act. The LAPP
serves about 291,259 people and about 437 employers. The LAPP is financed by employer and
employee contributions and investment earnings of the LAPP Fund.

Contributions for current service are recorded as expenditures in the year in which they become
due.

The Municipal District is required tc make current service contributions to the LAPP of 8.45%
(8.45% in 2022) of pensionable earnings up to the year's maximum pensionable earnings under
the Canada Pension Plan and 12.23% (12.80% in 2022) on pensionable earnings above this
amount. Employees of the Municipal District are required to make current service contributions
of 7.45% (7.45% in 2022) of pensionable salary up to the year's maximum pensionable salary
and 11.23% (11.80% in 2022) on pensicnable salary above this amount.

Total current service contributions by the Municipal District to the LAPP in 2023 were $380,131
(2022 - $348,839). Total current service contributions by the employees of the Municipal District

to the LAPP in 2023 were $340,501 (2022 — $312,999).

At December 31, 2022, the LAPP disclosed an actuarial surplus of $12.7 billion (2021 - surplus
of $11.9 billion); the 2023 LAPP actuarial balance was not available at the date of this report.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

14. Segmented disclosure:

Segmented information has been identified based upon lines of service provided by the
Municipal District. Municipal District services are provided by departments and their activities
are reported by functional area in the body of the financial statements. The segmented
information is presented in Schedule 2. Certain lines of service that have been separately
disclosed in the segments informaticon, aleng with the services they provide, are as follows:

(@) General Government:

The mandate of general government includes all Council governance, administrative and
taxation functional activities.

Protective and Bylaw Services:

The mandate of Protective and Bylaw Services is to provide for policing and bylaw
services.

Disaster Services:

The mandate of Disaster Services includes municipal emergency planning, disaster
response and emergency services dispatching.

Fire and Emergency Services:

The mandate of Fire and Emergency Services is to provide for the rescue and protection of
people and property within the Municipality through effective and efficient management
and coordination of emergency service systems and resources.

Transportation Services:

Transportation Services is responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services
related to the planning, development and maintenance of roadway system, streets, walks
and lighting, asset management and infrastructure design and construction.

Planning and Development:

Planning and Development is responsible for the administration of municipal planning
documents pertaining to residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural development
services within the municipality.

Recreation and Culture:

The Recreation and Culture department is responsible for providing regional recreation,
summer games and community event funding.

Agricultural Service Beard:

The mandate of the Agricultural Service Board is to undertake the requirements of the
Agricultural Service Board Act, Weed Control Act, Soil Conservation Act and to provide
guidance on agricultural matters to the municipal council and agricultural related services
to the public.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

14. Segmented disclosure (continued):

()  Environmental Services:
Environmental Services is responsible for water supply and distribution services within the
municipality including water and waste services, solid waste disposal and recycling
Services.

Community Services:

Community Services provides funding for programs that support individuals, families, and
communities through programs and services which are delivered through Family and
Community Support Services, cemetery services and medical facilities.

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial
information. Taxation and payments-in-lieu of taxes are allocated to the segments based on the
segment’'s budgeted net expenditure. User charges and cother revenue have been allocated to
the segments based upon the segment that generated the revenue. Government transfers have
been allocated to the segment based upon the purpose for which the transfer was made.

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

15. Salary and benefits disclosure:

Disclosure of salaries and benefits for elected municipal officials, the chief administrative officer
and designated officers as required by Alberta Regulation 313/2000 is as follows:

Benefits and Total Total
Salaries (i) Allowances (ii) 2023 2022

Division 1 - Van Driesten 37,458 % 13,276 50,734 $ 49,630
Division 2 - Kroetsch 37,458 12,281 49,739 49,307
Division 3 - Sandberg 46,823 8,824 55,647 55,792
Division 4 - Alm 38,796 13,779 52,575 51,744
Division 5 - Hemmaway 37,458 9,424 46,882 45,951
Division 6 - Berger 37,458 11,368 48,826 47,727
Division 7 - Sundquist = - - 30,848
Division 7 - Nelson 37,458 8,337 45,795 8,450

272,909 77,289 350,198 339,449

Chief Administrative Officer $ 239558 $ 36,995 $ 276553 3 271,419

i) Salary includes regular base pay. For Councilers, salary includes a monthly allowance to
attend special events and per diem reimbursement for authorized meetings attended.

For non-elected officials, employers share of all employee benefits and contributions or
payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage,
vision coverage, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance,
long and short-term plans as well as travel allowances, and professional memberships and
tuition.

Benefits and allowances also include the employer's share of the costs of additional taxable
benefits.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

16. Financial instruments:

The Municipal District as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments, such
as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, investments, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and long-term debt. It is management’s opinion that the Municipal District is
not exposed to significant interest, or currency risks arising from these financial instruments
except as otherwise disclosed.

Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying
values.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely
affected by a change in the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest
rate fluctuations, the Municipal District manages exposure through its normal operating
and financing activities.

Credit concentration:

The Municipal District is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in place of
taxes receivable and trade and cther receivables. Credit risk arises from the possibility that
taxpayers and entities to which the Municipal District provides services may experience
financial difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. The large number of diversity of
taxpayers and customers minimizes the credit risk.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Municipal District will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they become due. The Municipal District manages liquidity risk by
continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows from operaticns and anticipated
investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions.
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

17. Contingent liabilities:

The Municipal District is a member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange (MUNIX).
Under the terms of the membership, the Municipal District could become liable for its
proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the funds held by exchange. Any
liability incurred would be accounted for as a current transaction in the year the losses are
determined.

ii. The Municipal District is a member of the Willow Creek Waste Management Services
Commission (the "Commission"). The Commission has not determined what the future
liability is to close the landfill sites and consequently, the Municipal District could become
liable for its proportionate share of any closure and post closure costs in excess of the
funds held by the Commission. As of the reporting date, these costs are not determinable.

. Budget:

The disclosed budget information was approved by the Reeve and Council of the Municipal
District of Willow Creek on April 12, 2023.

. Approval of financial statements:

Council and Management approved these financial statements.
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DEMOGRAPHICS, AREA, & OTHER

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Population 6,180 6,081 6,081 5,179 5,179
Number of Dwelling Units 2,575 2,563 2,542 2,529 2,306
Area of Municipality (Hectares) 448,505 448 505 456,952 456,954 456,954
Number of Hamlets 4 4 4 4 4
Road Maintained {Km) 2,259 2,259 2,259 2,259 2,250
Water Pipeline (km) 46 46 46 46 1.8
Development Permits 110 113 149 116 123
Subdivisions and Applications 13 14 22 24 19
Full Time Staff 48 46 46 46 46

PROPERTY ASSESSMENT (in thousands)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Residential $ 802,151,330 720,520,680 675,313,910 669,490,040 625,233,830
Farmland $ 143,634,520 143,702,770 143,697,540 143,850,310 144,563,880
Non-Residential / Linear $ 1,073,515,370 860,192,130 712,573,620 733,065,490 739,344,990

TOTAL TAXABLE ASSESSMENT $ 2,019,301,280 $ 1,724,415,580 $ 1,531,585,070 $ 1,546,405,840 $ 1,509,148,700

Property Assessment (in Thousands)

$2,500,000,000
5$2,000,000,000
$1,500,000,000

$1,000,000,000

$500,000,000

5
2023 2022 2021 2020

7| Residential @ Farmland B Non-Residential / Linear
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TAX RATES (expressed in mills)

2022 2021 2020

Municipal

- Residential 3.061000 3.684000 3.759000 3.700000 3.700000
- Farmland 8.393000 7.990000 7.467000 7.189000 7.189000
- Non-Residential / Linear 7.936000 7.936000 7.936000 7.880000 7.793000

Education Requisition
- Residential / Farmland 2.362000  2.546000  2.580000  2.485000  2.515000
- Non-Residential / Linear 3.475000 3.598000 3.859000 3.649000 3.702000

Senior Foundation Requisition

- Willow Creek 0.289000 0.314000 0.371000 0.375000 0.356000
- Porcupine Hills 0.289000  0.200000 0.294000 0.276000  0.293000
- Mosquito Creek 0.289000 0.492000 0.528000 0.506000 0.475000
- Linear 0.289000 0.195000 0.159000 0.163000 0.170000

Special Levy

- Granum - Infrastructure 5.851000 6.510000 6.986000 7.097000 -

- Granum - Recreation Area - - - 0.027000 0.035000
- Claresholm - Recreation Area 0.262000 - 0.172000 0.161000 0.176000
Provincial Policing Costs 0.218000 0.171000 0.144000 0.095000

Designated Industrial Property Tax 0.075000 0.077000 0.077000 0.076000 0.078600

TOTAL TAX COLLECTIONS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Municipal Taxes 12,411,635 10,757,334 9,496,554 9,443,950 9,128,538
Requisitions:

- School 3,770,270 3,698,335 3,575,760 3,448,038 3,336,275
- Seniors 584,131 485,039 473,969 468,331 441,887
- Policing 439,966 324,044 220,331 146,782 <

- Designated Industrial Property Tax 74,202 73,296 49,752 50,392 54,161
- Claresholm Recreation 21,090 28,800 28,800 28,800
- Granum Recreation 4,000 4,000

TOTAL TAX COLLECTION 17,301,294 15,338,048 13,845,166 13,590,293 12,993,662
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES, & SURPLUS

TAX RECEIVABLES AS % OF TAXES
- Tax Receivables 547,592
-Total Tax Levies 17,301,294

- Tax Receivable as % of Taxes 3.2%

Financial Assets 14,214,483
Financial Liabilities 6,490,418

1,896,067
15,338,048
12.4%

15,753,127
8,460,924

&}
$

125,139
13,845,166
0.9%

13,832,879
4,465,129

605,483
13,590,293

4.5%

14,983,250
4,031,891

312,752
12,993,662
2.4%

11,221,618
1,618,556

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 7,724,065

Tangible Capital Assets 85,947,143
Inventory Held for Consumption 1,168,756
Prepaid Expenses 375,456

7,292,203

86,877,423
1,401,791
324,573

9,367,750

88,609,852
1,899,817
242,797

10,951,359

90,427,869
773,643
221,413

9,603,062

86,535,425
914,608
205,950

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 95,215,420

95,895,990

100,120,216

102,374,284

97,259,045

Unrestricted Surplus 269,480
Restricted Surplus ( Reserves) 12,561,306
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 82,384,634

227,964
12,388,201
83,279,825

255,448
11,618,019
88,246,749

232,944
11,713,471
90,427,869

306,290
10,417,330
86,535,425

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 95,215,420

95,895,990

100,120,216

102,374,284

97,259,045

REVENUES (by source)

Revenue:
Net municipal property taxes
User fees and sales of goods
Government Transfers for operating

12,411,635
602,904
1,579,491
544,394
93,281
8,930
1,491,003
95,636
32,473
13,656

Return on Investments
Penalties and costs on taxes
Licenses and permits

Other revenues

Rentals

Franchise fees

Fines

Well drilling

10,757,334
725,190
1,417,173
189,599
81,132
9,408
2,262,426
88,361
34,559
16,783

9,496,554
929,653
2,294,189
100,472
67,170
9,698
1,166,179
84,321
29,557
24,483

9,443,950
533,981
1,634,717
146,115
100,167
9,303
790,923
269,832
25,199
20,873

UF U U 0 U U 0

9,128,538
556,771
1,805,937
156,277
68,150
10,894
530,469
203,870

ol7i
6,442

OPERATING REVENUE
Contributed tangible capital assets
Government transfers for capital
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets

16,873,403
31,042
2,610,450
981,504

15,581,965
4,300
3,333,174
315,114

14,202,276
60,993
4,187,482
220,651

12,975,060
1,191,985
32,793
3,223,118

12,520,519
61,472
531,802
2,687,449

B R R ¥ R R R N A T S S O S P T,

TOTAL REVENUE 20,496,399
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19,234,553

W4 U U N U 0 U D D S

18,671,402

17,422,954

15,801,242
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EXPENSES (by function and object)

EXPENSES [by function)
Elected officials 414,937 389,910
1,566,586 1,655,785
517,093 489,430
776,358 636,755
42,501 41,429
4,647 4,583
975,907 915,802

360,996
2,100,166
438,934
705,861
214,526
10,411
618,426
6,762,526
461,987
240,148
24,614
522,773
541,269
280,037
114,531
126,500
213,741
7,188,024
20,925,470

348,771
1,539,982
284,014
615,777
39,664
2,215
561,294
6,599,496
370,906
227,360
12,000
454,391
517,193
189,000
251,335
127,342
213,741
7,153,216
19,507,697

387,816
1,706,190
288,776
613,560
38,384
655,514
5,700,316
142,451
229,890
15,000
373,555
469,744
195,600
259,320
109,603
197,605
6,792,669
18,175,993

5
General administration s
Information technology s
Fire s
Disaster and emergency services s
Claresholm medical clinic S
Emergency services and bylaw enforcement S
Transportation S 7,694,427 6,685,448
Water development S 511,694 564,512
Garbage collection and disposal S 233,509 220,799
Cemeteries s 51,918 24,599
g 581,470 596,126
s 625,576 618,398
5 338,400 291,300
s 58,552 27,422
5 150,308 127,111
S 220,955 207,360
3
$

Development and planning

Agricultural services board

Recreation boards

Parks and recreation

Libraries

Family and community support

Amortization of capital assets 6,412,130 7,239,305
TOTAL EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 21,176,968 20,736,074

Note: The term function is grouping the expenses by department

R V20 RPN VR VA ¥ N VN ¥ ¥ 2 SR PR V2 Vo R P VS VS ¥ S 75 S ¥ A V5
R0 RV TR VR TR Vo T ¥ S ¥ T ¥ S VU ¥, S VT ¥ T VT ¥ T W A ¥ R e ¥
£, 0 RV T VR T VT O T ¥ SV T ¥ R VT T S VAT ¥ T VT ¥ T W ¥ TR ) R V5

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

EXPENSES (by object)
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contracted and general services
Materials, goods, supplies and utilities
Provision for {recovery of) allowances

6,946,752 6,442,452
2,506,548 2,454,190
4,451,293 3,762,675

6,214,870
2,939,798
3,824,439
280,037
458,852
5,569
13,881
7,188,024

20,925,470

6,192,206
2,144,357
3,296,558
63,928
207,000
449,264
1,168

5,742,636
2,220,641
2,849,015
59,120
210,200
418,519
1,333

WOl DD

Transfers to organizations and individuals
Interest
Other

486,736 465,530
7,997 9,660
27,112 70,962
Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,412,130 7,239,305
TOTAL EXPENSES BY OBJECT 21,176,968 20,736,074
Note: The term object is grouping the expenses by type

6,792,669
18,175,993

7,153,216
19,507,697

5
5
5
5
Transfers to local boards and agencies S 338,400 291,300
5
s
5
$
$

R 720 RPN VN VR N VTR s N ¥ S V) S S
R 720t RO V5 S Pl Vs T Tl 75 SV R 70 SRV

DEBT SUPPORTED BY TAXES

2023 2022 2021

Gross Debt { supported by tax) 329,577 458,831 586,636

MD Population 6,180 6,081 6,081

LONG-TERM DEBT PER CAPITA 53 75 96

Note: Net Debt is defined by the difference between debt and "cash & cash equivalents”, which is zero for all years
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TRANSFERS TO LOCAL BOARDS
AND AGENCIES

TRANSFERS TO OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Cemetery Area Contribution 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
Library Boards 62,100 62,100 62,100 65,376 56,000
Recreation Area Contribution 332,400 291,300 280,037 207,000 210,300
Transportation Society 22,500 22,500 15,000 15,000 15,000

Willow Creek Regional Waste 72017 66,891 61,886 61,435 59,969
507,972 454,791 431,023 360,811 353,269

ANNUAL SURPLUS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

TOTAL REVENUE 20,496,399 19,234,553 18,671,402 17,422,954 15,801,242
TOTAL EXPENSES 21,176,968 20,736,074 20,925,470 19,507,697 18,175,993
ANNUAL SURPLUS {680,569) (1,501,521} (2,254,068) (2,084,743) {2,374,751)

ADD: Proceeds from Sale of Tangle 330,203 171,044 215,273 149,079 207,852
Capital Assets
ADD: Transfers from Restricted Surplus to (173,105) (770,182) 95,452 (700,000) (1,321,002)
Operations
ADD: Amortization of Tangible Capital 6,184,418 7,239,305 7,188,024 7,153,216 6,792,669
ADD: Amoritization of ARO Expense 227,712
Contributed Capitaltangible (31,042) (4,300) (60,993) {1,191,985) (61,472)
Assets
Less: Capital Expenditures (5,781,011) {5,257,558) (5,524,287) (3,457,281) (3,272,242)
Accretion expense 94,163
Transfer from Granum 58,368
Increase in debt (129,253} 95,728 363,103

ALLOCATION TO UNRESTRICTED SURPLUS 41,516 (27,484) 22,504 (73,346) (28,946)
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MD of Willow Creek

CONTACT INFORMATION:

MD OF WILLOW CREEK NO. 26

PO BOX 550

CLARESHOLM, ALBERTA, CANADA
TOL OTO

PHONE: 1-403-625-3351
TOLL FREE: 1-888-337-3351

FAX:1-403-625-3886 www.mdwillowcreek.com

Special thanks to Sandy Hansma for providing pictures of the MD used in this

report.



